
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
PENNS PLACE 
PETERSFIELD 
HAMPSHIRE  
GU31 4EX 
 

Telephone: 01730 266551 
Website: www.easthants.gov.uk 

 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
 

Date: Tuesday 21 July 2020   

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Skype for Business 

 
 

Membership:   Councillor J Matthews (Chairman) 
 
Councillors S Hunt (Vice-Chairman), A Agate, S Dolan, D Evans, G Hill, M Johnson, 
T Maroney, J May and B Mouland 
 
Reserves: Councillor G Boxall and P Wigman 
 

 
 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
David Brown 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Date of Publication: 13 July 2020 

 
Contact Officer: Cynthia Haveron 01730 234092 
 Email:  cynthia.haveron@easthants.gov.uk 



ii 
 

 
 

  Page 

 

PART 1 (items open for public attendance) 
 

 
 

1  Apologies for Absence   
 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2  Minutes of the Last Meeting   
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2020, 
previously distributed.  
 

 

3  Chairman's Announcements   
 

 

4  Declarations of Interest   
 
To receive and record any declarations of interest from members 
present in respect of any of the various matters on the agenda for this 
meeting. 
 

 

5  Update from Task & Finish Group - Covid-19 Response   
 
For Noting 
 

1 - 30 

6  Corporate Strategy   
 

31 - 86 

7  Consideration of any Executive Decision called in to the 
Committee (if applicable)   
 
For Decision 
 

 

8  Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
RECOMMENDED that the press and public be excluded for the 
meeting during the consideration of the following item as:  
  
a) It is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that if member of the public were 
present during the item there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
the Local Government Act 1972; and   
  
b) In all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information.  
 

 

 

PART 2 (Confidential items - closed to the public) 
 
 



iii 
 

 
9  Consideration of Matters Arising from Executive Decisions 

Relating to Exempt Items (if applicable)   
 
For Decision 
 

 



iv 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073. 
 
 

Internet 
 

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk 
 
 

 
.  

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


 

 

NON-EXEMPT 
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2020 
 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Task & Finish Group Covid-19 
Response 
 
Report by Democratic Services Officer 

 

 
FOR NOTING 
 
Report No: EHCL/026/2020 
  
Key Decision: No 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. To inform the Overview & Scrutiny Committee of the work to date of the 
Task and Finish group formed to consider the Covid-19 Response 
Cabinet report. 

 
2.0 Recommendation  
 

That the committee notes the report and comments of the group. 
 
3.0 Executive Summary  

 
3.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee established a Task & Finish 

Group to scrutinise the Covid-19 Response Report. The findings of the 
group were presented to Cabinet when it considered the report at its 
meeting held on 9 July 2020. 

 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The Task and Finish Group was established by the Committee at its 

meeting on 23 June 2020. The group comprises Cllr S Dolan, Cllr G 
Hill and Cllr T Maroney. 

 
4.2 The group contacted all members of the committee and asked for their 

comments and questions on the draft report.  These were submitted to 
EHDC Officers for a response and a copy of the questions along with 
responses can be found at Appendix B to this report. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 

4.3 Following receipt of the responses, the group highlighted the points 
that they believed to be of importance and collated them into the 
repose attached as Appendix A to this report. 

 
4.4 Cllr Matthews, Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

presented the report to Cabinet at its meeting on the 9 July 2020. 
 
5.0 Implications 
 
5.1 Resources: None 
 
5.2 Legal: No 
 
5.3 Finance: None 
 
6.0 Risks 

 
6.1 There are no risks identified. 

 
7.0 Consultation 
 
7.1  none 
 

8.0 Communication 
 
8.1 None 
 
9.0 Appendices: 

Appendix A: Task & Finish Group Report for Cabinet 
Appendix B: Questions and Answers submitted by members of the 
Committee 

 
10.0 Background Papers: 

 
10.1 None 
 
Agreed and signed off: 
 
Head of Legal Services: 13 July 2020 
Head of Finance: 13 July 2020 
 
Contact Officer: Cynthia Haveron 
Job Title:   Democratic Services Officer 
Telephone:  01730 234092 
E-Mail:  Cynthia.haveron@easthants.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



6 Jul 20 
 

1 
 

Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) 

Task and Finish Group – Covid-19 Response 

Report to Cabinet – 6 July 2020 via O&S V1.2 

Reference: 

A. Cabinet Report – Covid-19 Response dated 28 May 2020 

B. O&S Report with Q&A as at 4 July 2020 V1.3A 

1. At an O&S meeting on 23 June the committee formed a Task & Finish Group (T&FG) 

– Covid-19 Response of 3 members to pre-scrutinise Reference A and report its initial 

findings to the chairman O&S by 6 July 2020.  The document was not discussed by 

members at the meeting.  Instead, they were all asked to submit written comments 

and questions to T&FG by 29 June. 

2. Reference B, contains a consolidated list of Q&A’s upon which this report is based. 

Some paragraphs in Reference A have already been amended in response to some 

of the points raised.   

3. This initial report was rushed to meet the deadline of 6 July and is based, primarily, 

on the information provided so far.  However, some of EHDC’s responsibilities were 

delegated to partners such as Community First, Two Saints etc., their performances 

should also have been included in Reference A. 

4. The general view is that the Council has maintained services and supported residents 

throughout the Covid-19 lockdown whilst allowing many staff to work from home on 

safety grounds. The latter in support of residents through the Local Resilience Forum 

(LRF), the emergency planning team, controlled and coordinated by Hampshire 

County Council. 

5. However, unlike Havant Borough Council (HBC), EHDC councillors were not briefed 

on the organisational changes that took place or events as they unfolded.  

Consequently, the lack of information on what was really happening on the ground 

made assessing the council’s performance frustratingly difficult, until now. This 

frustration is a common theme, which shows through in some of the comment and 

questions raised by O&S members.  

6. Some specific points which the Group wishes to highlight: 

a. Newsletters clearly indicated that calls were being made to vulnerable residents 

by officers, which councillors welcomed.  However, councillors were surprised to 

learn that due to the disparity between the number of local support groups in 

Havant (33) and East Hampshire (95) these vital lifelines did not start in East 

Hampshire until June.  In such circumstances, why weren’t district councillors 

asked to contact the vulnerable in their wards?  [Para. 4.21, 4.58] 

b. Steps should be taken to avoid naming businesses that have chosen, for 

whatever reason, not to help Council with particular Covid-19 support projects.  

[Para. 4.28]  

c. There is a need for contemporaneous notes and early scrutiny when problems 

begin to emerge in Pandemics rather than relying, as we are in this report, on 

people’s memories months later.  [Para. 4.29] 

Page 3



6 Jul 20 
 

2 
 

d. There is also a need to brief and engage with parish councils in supporting 

vulnerable residents during a pandemic.  A leader’s regular skype briefing and 

Q&A session with council chairmen and clerks along with the allocation of 

designated support roles for parishes would help keep our communities better 

informed.   [Para. 4.29]   

e. There appeared to be a lack of coordination and communications between local 

support groups, and in contacting volunteers, many of whom have not been 

contacted at all.  At the beginning district councillors were instructed only to 

promote the services provided by Community First as volunteers needed DBS 

checks.  We cannot confirm if these safeguards are in place in all local, 

community support groups.  [Para. 4.29] 

f. Measures need to be in place to enable site visits to continue during any future 

lockdown.  This will require enhanced and, probably, permanent Health and 

Safety measure.  [Para. 4.29, 4.49, 6.11] 

g. Covid-19 has exposed the need for a more permanent organisational change. The 

key to which will be an increase in home working and electronic communications 

thereby reducing the need to travel.  Forced home working, which lacks the 

interactional benefits often derived from working with colleagues, may not be a 

positive experience for everyone.  With these points in mind, we suggest passing 

this issue to the Digital Strategy T&FG.  [Para. 4.39, 4.49, 7.2, App. 15, Para. 3] 

h. It is recommended that when most shops, services and facilities, particularly 

toilets, are closed and parking staff redeployed charges for parking should be 

suspended.  [Para. 4.49]  

i. There needs to have better and regular, virtual communications between the 

leader and district councillors in which Covid-19 questions can be addressed.  

Also the joint report needs to reflect more accurately what is happening in Havant 

separately from events in East Hampshire. [Para. 4.57, App 10] 

j. In the interest of residents’ essential wellbeing, there would appear to be a need 

for EHDC to maintain its own, direct electronic database of all residents’ email 

addresses and telephone. Such speedier communication will be essential if we 

are to out-pace future, virulent deceases such as Covid-19 and help people stay 

safe.   [Para. 4.58]  

k. Members acknowledged that our living and working environment has been 

radically changed by Covid-19.  Council will, therefore, need to be rethink its 

policies and be imaginative when visualising the future needs of our communities.   

l. Rebuilding the budget and reserves will be essential tasks during the next few 

years.  These will clearly require a new and innovative approach to corporate 

strategy along with sound and adaptable business plans.  Success will be 

dependent upon creating inclusive policies, securing government refunding and 

cross-party support.  [Para. 4.79, 4.80, 4.83, 4.85, 4.88] 

 

Cllr. Stephen Dolan Cllr. Graham Hill Cllr. Trevor Maroney 

Alton Wooteys Alton Holybourne Whitehill Pinewood 

 

Page 4



1 
 

Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) 

Task and Finish Group – Covid-19 Response 

Comments and Questions raised on 23 June 2020 

Consolidated List as at 4 July 2020 with Answers V1.3A [Jamie’s copy for Cabinet Meeting] 

1. The table below contains all the comments and questions from (O&S) members sorted in ascending order by page and paragraph 

numbers.  For ease of reference extracts from the Covid-19 report either whole or in part paragraphs have been added. These have 

been highlighted in green. 

2. The other changes to Version One are the inclusion of Cllr. Graham Hill’s questions and the relevant paragraphs numbers have 

now been put in ascending order. 

3. Cllr. Maroney queried 2 of the answers that he had originally received.  The answers to Paragraph 4.57 on Page 32 and to App 10 

on Page 93 have now been replaced and the Covid-19 report corrected accordingly.   

Page 
No 

Para. 
No 

Extract from Covid-19 Report 

Comment Answers 

17 2.1 d As agreed at the Overview & Scrutiny Meeting on 23rd 
June an initial response is going to be limited in scope 
by the time available. The final timeline for a full 
feedback will ultimately depend upon the level of detail 
that the T&F Group are able to look at. 

Noted 

17 3.1 “This report outlines the Council’s response to the pandemic and is arranged as follows:  

o Background  
o Roles and responsibilities  
o Council’s response  

i. Community support  
ii. Business support  
iii. Staff welfare and deployment  
iv. Communications Page 17 By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
v. Service delivery  

o Financial implications of Covid…………………”  

P
age 5



2 
 

17 3.1 My overall view is that the council has reacted most 
positively and effectively for the benefit of all residents 
and businesses. Taking the bullet points in order: 

The community support has been excellent, and my 
understanding is that EHDC has met the needs of the 
vulnerable members of the community. I was most 
pleased with the local response here in Rowlands 
Castle where both the parish council and churches 
together with other community groups and volunteers 
put together a support network that worked extremely 
well for all those vulnerable residents including those 
self-isolating. 

I was able to circulate EHDC’s business support 
information to all local businesses enabling those who 
needed financial support to obtain it in a straightforward 
manner. 

Locally the delivery of EHDC’s services has continued 
without interruption, i.e. weekly waste bin collections 
and grass-cutting 

My own experience of EHDC staff working remotely has 
been excellent with all the officers with whom I needed 
to have contact responding accordingly and providing 
me with all the local support that I needed. 

The regular updates from the Communications team has 
been very good providing information as soon as it was 
announced within EHDC enabling the information to be 
available locally very quickly. 

I have no knowledge of EHDC’s financial activity but 
again from Communications info. I have no reason to 
doubt that the council has put in place all the 
appropriate measures to deal with the current situation. 

 

P
age 6



3 
 

17  Why is the report classified as exempt when 80% of it is 
a history of what has taken place over the last 4 
months?   I believe the report should be split in 2 
sections with only the remaining 20% being exempt. 

The report for the committee is not exempt. The appendix 
containing the draft report for cabinet is exempt because it 
is a draft report. 

A draft report is not disclosable by right to any councillor or 
committee, Cabinet (the executive) have invited Scrutiny to 
comment on the draft before publication so that your 
comments can be considered and where appropriate 
incorporated into the report. The perfected report will then 
be published as part of the cabinet agenda and if scrutiny 
wish to publicly consider the report or as part of a work 
programme they may do so.  

This methodology is to allow the pre scrutiny function to 
operate effectively and to influence and shape policy for 
the future, otherwise scrutiny is left to an after the event 
approach based on criticism of past decisions in the hope it 
may bear some relevance to future decisions, pre scrutiny 
is designed to look at future decision making informing the 
executive of a wider spectrum of views to allow the best 
informed decision to be made.  

There is no obligation on scrutiny to consider the draft 
report and you may decline the referral from cabinet and 
rely on the traditional post event scrutiny as your primary 
means of considering the report as it is published on the 
cabinet agenda and after consideration by cabinet. 

19 4.6 “On 11 March 2020, as part of the Budget, the Chancellor set out a package to provide support for public services, individuals 
and businesses affected by the coronavirus.”  

19 4.6  Add: 11th March was the date the WHO declared Covid-
19 a Pandemic 

Noted and amended in final version 

23 4.21 “As part of the work on identifying our potentially vulnerable residents (not on the shielded list) the Council instigated a project 
to contact residents by phone to check in on them and offer assistance where required and let them know about options. A script 
and data recording system was finalised to ensure calls were standardised with staff being redeployed to conduct the calls. A 

P
age 7



4 
 

total of 95 staff have been calling vulnerable residents and as of 5 June 2020 these colleagues have made over 700 calls to East 
Hampshire residents.” 

23 4.21 How many staff were furloughed?  How many staff were 
unable to carry out their usual roles – i.e. physical 
planning and compliance inspections?   Does that 
situation still exist and how will breaches of the new 
licensing guidelines ref pubs be policed if officers cannot 
visit?  

No EHDC employed staff have been furloughed.  This is 
because the rules of the scheme mean that only those that 
aren’t in fully funded posts would be eligible to be 
furloughed. Any members of staff who are not able to fulfil 
their duties are in fully funded posts and as such would not 
be able to be furloughed. HR have actively worked with 
Heads of Service to ensure that resources within each 
service are have been used efficiently and well. 

12 staff within EH Commercial Services Limited have been 
furloughed, although during the period (March-June) 
various staff came back from furlough as restrictions were 
lifted. EH Commercial Services is a company wholly owned 
by EHDC, providing litter enforcement services to various 
local authorities and staff are employed by EH Commercial 
Services Limited not EHDC. 

23 4.21 Why have 95 staff only rung, on average 8 vulnerable 
residents each (total 700) up until 5 June 2020?   Whilst 
I consider the task essential it doesn’t appear to be an 
efficient use of resources if that is all they are doing. 

Staff are undertaking outbound calls alongside business as 
usual and other COVID response work, including for many 
the Local Response Centre. No additional staff (e.g. 
agency) were brought in for the project, it has been 
undertaken in its entirety using existing resources and so 
has relied on the dedication and enthusiasm of our staff.  

23 4.21 Whilst this is laudable it would have been good for 
Councillors to know this earlier. 95 staff calling 
vulnerable residents yet only 700 successful calls are 
noted here. 
Many Councillors were phoning local residents, they 
should have been invited to participate in the same 
‘pool’ of people being called by Officers, perhaps on a 
Ward by Ward basis. This would have increased the 
success rate on contacting residents. Indeed there was 

Outbound calls made by officers from both Councils began 
in Havant at the end of April recognising the high numbers 
of vulnerable people with only 33 local support groups 
compared to 95 in East Hampshire.  Calls were prioritised 
for Havant following on from feedback from the EH 
Community Co-ordination Group, when discussing the 
need for outbound calls, advising that with so many 
support groups and local volunteers/councillors actively 
calling on residents it was felt that there was very strong 

P
age 8



5 
 

some duplication of effort as we know some people 
called by residents mentioned the call they had from 
EHDC. 

‘local’ knowledge and the need was not so pressing.  Calls 
to East Hampshire began at the beginning of June with a 
focus on the over 70s.  By the 22/6/20 1020 calls had been 
made in EH (62%).  We are aware of possible duplication 
with calls and officers acknowledge the benefits that 
involving Councillors would have brought – this will be 
added to our lessons learnt and Cllrs will be advised 
should additional calls be required and invited to 
participate. 

23 4.23 “A weekly meeting for Local Support Groups has been set up with Community First, and attended by the Deputy Leader and 
EHDC officers, to update and share concerns and, good practice in relation to supporting local communities.” 

23 4.23  Are “Local Support Groups” listed anywhere and what is 
their composition? 

The Council holds a database of all the support groups 
across East Hampshire and Havant – this database is used 
by the Local Resource Centre when assessing the most 
appropriate referral route.  The groups are all very different 
– ranging from larger long term established groups, 
foodbanks to Facebook pages and one or two people 
covering a helpline a couple of days a week.  There are 95 
support groups/organisations in East Hampshire. 

23 4.23 The Royal Voluntary Service was quick off the mark with 
its GoodSam app which quickly attracted 750,000 
volunteers to help in the community. Did we team up 
with this organisation? 

Officers on the LRF referred to GoodSam, local support 
groups, our own team and Community First depending 
upon the request from the resident and the nature/urgency 
of the request. 

24 4.25 “On the 26 March 2020, MHCLG sent a letter to all Councils (Appendix 5) with a direction to safeguard as many homeless as 
possible from Covid-19 and to bring in those off the streets to protect their health and to stop wider transmission of the virus. 
Officers have worked with 91 households since the end of March and have offered accommodation to anyone presenting as 
homeless regardless of whether there is a legal duty owed to them. There have been 15 households placed into B&B and 6 have 
refused an offer and made alternative arrangements. There are currently 8 households still in emergency accommodation, 7 of 
which are placements protecting people from Covid-19 with the remaining being households placed under a legal duty prior to 
the pandemic and unable to move on. To ensure there were vacancies available to place into, the Council block booked six rooms 
at Buriton where the landlord has been incredibly supportive ensuring additional cleaning and safeguarding mechanisms have 

P
age 9



6 
 

been put in place for those placed there. There is weekly contact with all those placed into B&B either from Council officers or 
from Two Saints. Officers are currently looking at move-on plans to ensure people do not return to the streets. There has been no 
move-on through Hampshire Home Choice for over two months, however our partner registered providers are starting 
discussions about when this may begin again.” 

24 4.25 This was a surpassingly high number and officers are 
commended for dealing with this. Thanks to the 
accommodation Buriton for stepping in. 
However, given that Premier Inn chose not to work with 
EHDC it would be a good idea to have discussions now 
with local hotels and B&B s to enlarge the EHDC list of 
emergency accommodation 

The Council’s homelessness strategy and action plan 19-
24 states that additional temporary accommodation needs 
to be located within the district to reduce out of area 
placements.  The aim is to reduce the use of B&B 
generally, but officers acknowledge the need to have ‘local’ 
B&Bs for emergencies.  We have access to an 
establishment in Rowlands Castle and we will continue 
discussions with the Buriton landlord as they have 
indicated they would like to continue to work with us. 

24 4.26 “Gypsies and travellers are designated as being in a vulnerable group and as such the Council must ensure support and 
appropriate advice is available if required. A team has been set up to deal with this and are currently working on identifying 
potential temporary sites should they be required.” 

24 4.26 Does the Council have a contact point for reaching out 
to Gypsy and Travellers? Perhaps are there Facebook 
pages of WhatsApp Group that EHDC can access?  
By the very nature of travelling it will not be easy to keep 
in touch with these communities. 

HCC provides a county wide Gypsy and Traveller Service, 
comprising a team of Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Officers. 
At a district level, we work closely with the HCC team and 
share information as is relevant and appropriate to do so. 
In addition, the EHDC Community Safety team has built up 
relationships with a number of groups who occupy land in 
the district on a regular basis. Should an encampment be 
set up in the district the team have well established 
processes in place, part of which will seek to determine 
any housing related or welfare needs for each group. 

25 4.28 “………..As the week went on vacancies were slowly released but one of our sources of accommodation – Premier Inns, chose not 
to work with Councils, despite pressure from the MHCLG. “ 

25 4.28  

 

Last sentence mentions Premier Inns. Is it necessary or 
appropriate to single out this company for implied 
criticism? 

The reason Premier Inns were mentioned is because the 
MHCLG encouraged LAs to approach Premier Inns and 
similar chains to request their support.  EHDC has in the 

P
age 10



7 
 

past used Premier Inns in the area and surrounding area 
but on this occasion despite the Government encouraging 
such organisations to support LAs we were unable to 
source any rooms through this route.  A local B&B in 
Buriton was willing for us to block book 12 rooms for 
emergency use and provide cooking facilities for our 
referrals which has been invaluable and ensured we were 
able to offer accommodation within the area. 

25 4.29 “Another challenge was the reluctance from County to share any data with us despite it being encouraged by the Government 
subject to compliance with data protection laws. There were a number of weeks spent requesting data and on 7 May 2020 the 
County requested support from Districts and Boroughs to follow up on welfare visits to those on the shielded list where contact 
had not been made or made and then lost. The relevant data was then shared to enable the Council to carry out welfare visits 
and then cross reference with ours to ensure we minimised ‘call fatigue’ to our potentially vulnerable residents. There is no 
requirement for the County to share all the data of all those on the shielded list as the Council would have no need for this data. 
The County had already at this point established who was in need of support. Personal data can only be shared if there is a 
necessity to do and it is to ensure the safety of the individual. The Council now receives weekly data for those requiring food 
parcels or welfare visits. A data sharing agreement has been signed with the County, explicitly advising of how this data can be 
used and that it is not to be shared further.” 

25 4.29 Why was Hampshire County Council so reluctant to 
share data despite Government encouragement? They 
should be challenged on this. 

As a first tier authority the Shielded Lists became HCC’s 
data, although the Government advised data could be 
shared with second tier it was the County’s decision not to 
do this.  HCC’s CEO wrote to all Hampshire LAs advising 
that they would not be sharing the detail of the shielded 
lists as they felt that this would not be of any benefit to the 
residents.  Their concerns were around the data being 
shared too widely and also call fatigue and confusion.  
EHDC did challenge this and as stated in the report HCC 
then shared the data on those requiring a welfare visit and 
those receiving food parcels. 

25 4.29 The County’s reluctance to share data does not make 
good reading. Is the 
data sharing agreement ongoing or time limited? 

The data sharing agreements are limited to the food 
parcels lists and welfare visits and will be valid until no 
longer required. 

P
age 11



8 
 

25 4.29 “….the reluctance from County…” There have been 
numerous reports of bureaucratic procedures and 
attitudes having inhibited timely responses to Covid-19. 
There will be studies once the crisis is over, but in order 
that accurate data is available, it is important that 
contemporaneous records are made when problems 
emerge rather than relying people’s memories for the 
details many months after the event. 

We will need to have a serious review of the HIOW LRF. 
It’s Risk Matrix has “Pandemic Flu” very high on the list, 
both for likelihood and impact. However, it’s been known 
for decades that other, non-flu-like viruses have 
potential to cause pandemics and, as we have seen 
from Covid-19, what works for flu doesn’t necessarily 
work for others. 

Local help for the community from Parish Councils has 
been very important to supporting vulnerable people in 
East Hampshire during the pandemic, however these 
bodies are ignored by the LRF. A few years ago 
Horndean PC asked the County what the PC should be 
doing in order to prepare for an emergency and they 
were told it was nothing to do with them and they were 
not to involve themselves in emergency planning. Let’s 
learn the right lessons. 

Noted 

25 4.29,  
Line 
7 

I note that relevant data enabled Council to carry out 
welfare visits.  How many visits were carried out?   
 
 
I received note telling me of a fly tip in my ward and that 
no enforcement notices (site visit) would being carried 
out on safety grounds.   
 

26 Welfare Visits have been carried out to date (awaiting to 
hear about this week's requests) on the request of HCC - 
these visits are to check that the household is ok as there 
has been no contact or response to calls made by the 
County or the Council.  Full training/Risk assessment and 
PPE was given before these essential visits were made. 
 
With regards to Fly tip allegations we were operating on 
the basis that we would only visit the site if there was a risk 

P
age 12



9 
 

 of harm or hazardous material to be cleared that did not fall 
under the NORSE contract for removal. 
 
This did not prevent the matter being investigated just that 
a site visit was not an option. As of today we are now 
operating under a different risk assessment which means 
that we can undertake site visits for investigative purposes 
for all fly tips. 

Due to lockdown restrictions and increased risk to staff 
presented by coronavirus, very few site visits have been 
undertaken in the past few months.  However we are 
producing risk assessments and procedures with additional 
controls so we may safely recommence work streams, and 
continue to protect the health and safety of the public. 

25 4.29 It says that there were a number of weeks requesting 
data. Can there be some elaboration as to what this 
data was? Was it the County shielded list or something 
else? How was this overcome by Council?  

The data originally requested was the Shielded List.  The 
Council did not receive this data but did receive food parcel 
and welfare checks data. This information was shared for 
the benefit of the residents and to ensure welfare checks 
were carried out quickly when required. 

25 4.29 Does the last line, 'not to be shared farther' refer to other 
parties or is it referring to a mutually agreed date? 

The data sharing agreement is related to specific data – 
food parcels and welfare visits – there is no specific date 
when this agreement will end but the reference is regarding 
where the data is shared in relation to council officers – it 
must not be shared with anyone from any other 
organisation even if working in partnership. 

25 4.30 - 
4.37  

EHDC were very quick to administer the Government 
Grants. This was well done 

Noted 

26 4.34 “The initial allocation for business support grants for East Hampshire was £25.6m which was based on reported hereditaments. 
As of 8 June, 2063 business had been paid the grant to a value of £25.494m (95% of eligible businesses). 100% of businesses that 
have applied have received the grant and the remaining businesses are those that we have not been able to contact despite 
attempts made to make contact.”  

P
age 13



10 
 

26 4.34 What steps were taken to ensure that business relief 
claims were not fraudulent?  

In the main, we already had a relationship with these 
businesses as Ratepayers who were claiming the grant. 
Where we were able, an automatic grant payment was 
made. All other businesses were written to and invited to 
apply on-line. If we had any concerns about an application, 
further checks were made i.e. Companies House, calling 
landlords, photographic evidence and asking for evidence 
of lease. 

28 4.39 “Covid-19 has changed the way the Council works in a very short space of time. It has achieved a ‘forced shift’ to digital 
remarkably well. The way staff are working and how they are interacting at all different levels has radically changed. The 
emergency has driven the digital transformation at pace and has highlighted the way our workforce can adapt quickly to these 
changes. The workforce has risen to the challenge of Covid-19 and has continued to deliver critical Council services despite the 
various challenges that ‘forced’ homeworking creates. They have demonstrated agility and flexibility and above all a 
professionalism and commitment which has ensured that Council services continue even in the face of extreme adversity. “ 

28 4.39 The ability and flexibility of the workforce in adapting to 
sudden organisational change is both highly 
commendable and vitally important. Perhaps a lesson 
we can absorb is that organisational changes in Local 
Government may have previously been carried out over 
unnecessarily extended timescales. A “do it quick and 
tweak and de-bug as it beds in“ might be more effective 
and could encourage greater staff buy-in. (see also 7.2 
below) 

Noted 

28 4.39 - 
4.40 

A significant element of home or ‘hub’ working is a 
desirable objective 
for the recovery plan. However, Employees and 
Councillors must be given the right 
equipment and training. The ‘Digital Strategy’ will be 
key. Early adoption of Microsoft Teams or Zoom to 
replace Skype for Business must be pursued with some 
urgency. It is no good waiting for Skype for Business to 

Agreed, and will be a major feature in the implementation 
plans of the digital strategy going forwards. There is 
already a commitment to migrate to MS Teams, and we will 
not be waiting for Skype for Business to be discontinued to 
complete those works. 

P
age 14



11 
 

be discontinued (which will happen in July 2021). EHDC 
was ill-prepared for remote meetings and Government 
guidance also had shortcomings. 
Councils which had moved forward faster on their 
Climate Emergency with regard to 
remote and paperless meetings were in a far better 
position to move to virtual meetings when Government 
regulations allowed. 

29 4.43 
& 
4.44 

Which services now remain with Capita? Capita deliver the following services for EHDC: IT, 
Exchequer and Procurement. 

29 4.45 “Environmental Services – service changes were implemented early on in order to preserve essential elements of waste collection. Bulky 
waste collections were put on hold, public toilets closed, and green waste and recycling delayed if necessary, to enable household waste 
collection to continue. New protocols for Norse staff were implemented in order to limit close contact of crews and household waste 
collections have been maintained through the lockdown.” 

29 4.45 Bonuses should be paid to those people who carried on 
working...e.g. the binmen, fantastic job. 

Noted 

30 4.49 “ ……….A decision was made to keep our car park’s open but to keep charging in place in order to discourage attendance at car parks only 
when necessary, this was based on Government guidance, free parking was made available for NHS staff.” 

30 4.49  Last sentence “discourage attendance at car parks only 
when necessary”. The meaning is not clear. 

Noted and amended in final version 

30 4.49 What was the point of keeping charging in place for car 
parks when there was 
no enforcement? Would it have been more transparent 
to have allowed free parking for the period when the 
vast majority of shops and services were closed? Free 
parking, especially “pop-in parking must be a key part of 
the covid-19 recovery plan. 

The initial advice at the very start of the pandemic was to 
‘stay at home’ and ‘do not travel unless absolutely 
essential’. Relaxing charges were considered at the time, 
however, it was felt that in doing so, this could potentially 
encourage people in to our towns, and as a result not 
supporting the guidance issued by the Government. We 
did however, and still are in some instances, provide 
support to key workers so that they could park for free in 
our town centres. 

P
age 15



12 
 

30 4.49 Why did we continue charging for car parks when the 
parking attendants had been stood down? What were 
they doing by the way? 

We were transparent about continuing to charge in our car 
parks and this was the subject of a lot of media coverage 
at that time. In terms of officers, until it was considered 
safe to do so and a full risk assessment had been worked 
through so that the teams could return to patrols, the team 
were put forward for re-deployment. Some helped to staff 
the virtual call centres, taking referrals from vulnerable 
residents, others assisted with deliveries to those 
vulnerable households. 

30 4.49 Has there been any increase in fly tipping? Fly-tipping figures are provided below for 2019 and 2020: 

 2019 2020 Increase/ 
decrease 

March 49 54 +5 

April 49 87 +38 

May 38 80 +42 

 

 
 

31 4.52 “Changes in staffing are updated on a weekly basis by every Head of Service. From this information a weekly staffing picture is 
created by the HR team which highlights to senior management the use of staffing resources. At a glance, the senior team are 
able to identify whether there are any resources which could be effectively redeployed into other teams where there are 
resourcing pinch points. Please see Appendix 8 – Staffing Picture Dashboard and Appendix 9 – Redeployment Dashboard. This 
ensures staff resources are used in the very best way possible during this emergency. Highlights each week from the dashboards 
are shared with all Heads of Service to ensure that trends in resource can be monitored and relevant actions taken where 
needed.”  

31 4.52 It would have been helpful to Councillors to have known 
more specific information about staff redeployment. It is 
understood that this was fast moving but Councillors 
had no idea about who was being redeployed, and 

Noted 

P
age 16



13 
 

therefore the impact on 
service delivery 

31 4.53 “Display Screen Equipment (DSE) assessments have been completed by staff now working from home and services have 
completed additional risk assessments to reflect new working arrangements. Guidance on welfare and wellbeing when working 
from home has been circulated to staff through a weekly staff newsletter, updated HR FAQs for managers and via the Health and 
Safety Champions and Mental Health First Aiders. The Employee Assistance Programme is available for confidential staff 
support. The team is proactively monitoring take up of the Employee Assistance Programme and use of the in-house Mental 
Health First Aiders. Union representatives are also involved in this workstream as well as sitting on the Covid-19 Corporate 
Management Team meetings.”  

31 4.53 Is there any more information on the impact of home 
working on staff wellbeing or morale? 

A wellbeing staff survey has been undertaken recently. 
61% of staff responded which enables the results of the 
survey to be valid. Headlines from the survey indicated 
that: 

The key results were: 

 93% of respondents feel they are kept informed of 
the councils’ response to the pandemic through 
channels such as Kneller’s News, Team Talk and 
the Weekly Email. 

 86% of respondents are confident that the senior 
leadership team will take the right steps through the 
pandemic 

 78% of respondents feel that the senior leadership 
team are visibly role modelling behaviours asked of 
staff members through the pandemic 

 70%+ of respondents feel they receive support from 
their line manager 

 48% of respondents have concerns about infection 
in the workplace 

 13% of respondents are experiencing negative side 
effects as a result of DSE set-up 

P
age 17



14 
 

 73% of staff who responded like their new way of 
working 

A programme of wellbeing wins newsletters has been 
provided to staff and will continue over the coming months. 
In addition, to this there are more organisational 
development interventions planned to provide staff with 
further wellbeing support e.g. Paul McGee session; role of 
wellbeing champions etc. 

32 4.57 “Throughout the pandemic, regular all-staff emails have been sent to keep staff informed. As the situation has evolved these 
communications have focused on matters such as working from home, staff welfare and support for managers. In addition 
regular corporate communication tools such as Kneller’s News and Team Talk have been conducted through Skype for Business 
with over 200 staff participating in each of these sessions when held. Councillors have been kept informed through regular 
Councillor Newsletters and updates together with virtual seminars on key themes.“ 

32 4.57 I acknowledge the receipt of newsletters, but can you 
please give dates, times and subjects of the virtual 
seminars on key themes?  I do recall suggesting ones 
on government covid-19 funding and on bereavement 
counselling. 

This wording has been removed from the final draft as at 
present no virtual seminars have been held for EHDC 
Councillors. During the pandemic the frequency of 
councillors’ e-newsletters has been increased to weekly in 
order to keep councillors’ updated. 

32 4.57 Why weren't councillors copied in to Kneller's News and 
Team Talk? 

 

Kneller’s News and Team Talk are staff communication 
channels, however consideration could be given as to 
whether Councillors could be invited to these if this is 
desirable. Recordings or information of staff 
communications can be provided if requested. 

The communications team produces the councillors’ e-
newsletter and tries very hard to include relevant, timely 
and useful information. During the pandemic the frequency 
of these has increased to weekly.  

32 4.57 Communication workstream – see comment about 4.52 
above. Also a general point, the communications 
presentation did improve but a lot of the Press Releases 

Press Releases have varying content and headlines. 

P
age 18



15 
 

looked the same’ although the content was different. 
There needs to be varying formats to get messages 
more widely read. 

We also send out e-newsletters to residents which look 
very different to press releases and there are also 
Councillor e-newsletters which look different too. 

The information we post on social media also take a 
different tone. 

33 4.58 The Council holds email address of many, probably 
most, residents. An obvious way to quickly disseminate 
vitally important information about Covid-19 and 
available help was to email all residents. Was this done 
and if not, why? 

The Council does not hold a single database of email 
contacts for residents. Nothing the pressure of time, the 
use of social media had a wider impact more quickly, as 
did the distribution to of e-newsletters to everyone who has 
proactively requested to be kept in touch with EHDC news 
and information. Relying on email contacts across a 
number of databases would have delayed some 
messaging, and many of the contacts may have fallen out 
of date and therefore wouldn’t have been reached. 

34 4.65 “The hardship fund will be used to provide council tax relief, alongside our existing Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS). The 
Councils allocation of funding is £516,901.” 

34 4.65 

 

“The Councils…” seems to be missing an apostrophe 
which changes its meaning. 

Noted and amended in final version 

34 4.66 “The Government’s guidance sets out the expectation that Councils will provide all residents of working age in receipt of CTSS 
with a further reduction in their annual council tax bill up to a value of £150 during the financial year 2020-21. Where the liability 
for the year is less than £150 after the application of the CTSS, then their liability would be reduced to nil. Where the taxpayer’s 
liability is already nil, no reduction to the council tax bill will be available. “ 

34 4.66 Is this £150 off the total bill, not just the EHDC part and 
if so, how is it apportioned? 

The £150 payment comes of the total Council Tax bill – 
these hardship payments are covered by central 
government grant and therefore are not apportioned 
between Hampshire County Council, East Hampshire etc. 

36 4.74 “The Covid-19 pandemic is likely to have financial implications for the 2020-21 Budget and potentially the longer term financial 
sustainability of the Council. ……..” 

P
age 19



16 
 

36 4.74 When will the quarterly budget reviews take place? Will 
these be presented to 
Audit Committee / Full Council? 

Quarterly monitoring will be presented to Cabinet at the 
end of each quarter (likely to be September for Q1 as there 
is no scheduled Cabinet in August). 

End of Year Accounts come forward to Audit Committee for 
approval. 

37 4.79 “A far more concerning impact to the Council is the loss of revenue through reduced income and from arrears in council tax and 
business rates.” 

37 4.79 Have any rents ‘holidays’ been allowed, as opposed to 
allowing monthly rent 
payments. Have any rent ‘amnesties’ been allowed, 
allowing companies to not pay rent arrears? 

No rent holidays have been granted and no rent amnesties 
have been allowed. The UK Government has legislated to 
protect commercial tenants from eviction and debt recovery 
actions. We, along with all commercial landlords in the UK, 
will consider what options we have when this amnesty 
ends (currently due to end in September) 

37 4.80 Shortfall in Income.  The percentages on their own are 
meaningless.   How much income from these sources 
would we have expected to receive against all monthly 
income in April?  
 

The table below paragraph 4.81 details actuals as well 

as expected actuals for month of April and comparison 

with previous April (2019). For example, Building 

Control inspection fees have an annual budgeted 

income of £180,000 which per month you would expect 

to receive approximately £15,000. In April 2020 the 

income was £7,800 (around 50% less than expected) 

In comparison in April 2019 Building Control inspection 

fee income was £12,700. 

38 4.83 “Based on current estimates the impact on Covid-19 could be as follows up until end of June as per the table below:  
                                                                                All figs in £'000  
Funding Support Received to date  
(share of £3.2bn);                                                                                                                                                       £1,244  
 
Deduct:                                                          March            April              May            June          TOTAL                 TOTAL 
Estimated Additional spending                      £26              £44               £50             £50                                         £170 
pressures to end of June;  

P
age 20



17 
 

Estimated Income Losses to end  
of June;  
1 - Retained Business Rates                                                                                                              £833  
2 - Council Tax                                                                                                                                     £805  
3 - Sales, fees and charges*                           £97             £388            £388           £388          £1,261  
4 - Commercial Income**                            £333             £333             £333          £333          £1,332  
5 - Other                                                                                                                                                   £0                              .                               
                                                                                                                                                                                          £4,231  
Overall Unfunded Gap                                                                                                                                                -£3,157  
 
*these include all regulatory fees (Planning, Building Control, Environmental Health) as well as parking charges and waste 
services income  
**these include our commercial property income.”  

38 & 
39 

4.83 The Overall unfunded gap is surmised as £3.157m. At 
this level how much reserve will remain? What is the 
plan going forward to replace the reserves? 

The latest reserves position can be found within the 2020-
21 Budget papers (appendix E) 
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s12424/05
%20Appendix%20E%20Analysis%20of%20Reserves%20
EHDC.pdf  

The Q1 budget monitoring forecast will provide additional 
information as to whether reserves are required to meet 
any potential shortfall. In addition, measures have already 
been taken such as identifying budget savings, possible 
recruitment savings and travel savings as detailed in 
paragraph 4.85 of the report which will mitigate the 
potential unfunded gap. 

39 4.83 The table is up to the end of June. Referenced appendix 
12 is for the full financial year. Is there an equivalent 
table to the full financial year? 

The Quarter 1 forecast will provide a full financial year 
forecast for the likely full year position, however, this 
should be considered in light of potential additional waves 
of the virus and local or national lockdowns.  

39 4.83 What is the overall unfunded gap for the year at 50%, 
75% and 90%? 

The 50%, 75% and 90% was an analysis of cashflow for 
the year.  We will provide potential unfunded position as 
part of the Q1 forecast once we have an increased amount 

P
age 21

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


18 
 

of data showing the three months of April, May and June 
including information on Council Tax collection rate.  

39 4.84 “Whilst it has been difficult to predict the potential impact of an extended period of social distancing, initial forecasts have been 
prepared based on the following scenarios:  

 50% cash reduction for the entire year of 2020/21 covering fees and charges, council tax and NNDR. Models have also been 
reviewed considering a 75% and 90% cash reduction.  

 All models reviewed (50%, 75% and 90%) have demonstrated that the Council can meet its obligations in the short term.  

 A reduction in cash of 50% for the entire financial year is currently the model being utilised and this would still allow for enough 
cashflow in short term to ensure the Council can meet its obligations, in particular through the use of existing cash reserves and 
reserves that the Council has set aside. However, this approach does present a risk to the authority as it would potentially result 
in the depletion of our reserves to an unsustainable level. See Appendix 12 – Cashflow summary.” 

39 4.84 When will more information be available on the impact 
on our reserves? 

The Quarter 1 forecast will provide details are any potential 
use of reserves to mitigate any shortfalls. The current 
reserves position is provided within the approved budget 
papers as per the February 2020 Full Council 
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s12424/05
%20Appendix%20E%20Analysis%20of%20Reserves%20
EHDC.pdf 
 
The Statement of Accounts once approved will also give an 
update on the Reserves position. 

40 4.85 “………………………Decisions will need to be made within the next couple of months to ensure the ongoing financial sustainability of 

the Council:  

 All recruitment is currently subject to approval from Executive Board. A recruitment freeze for the entire year could generate 

approximately £1m in vacancy savings based on the vacancies that existed at the point of budget setting  

 Discretionary training could be removed from budgets which would generate in the region of £0.044m.  

 As a result of changing behaviour from staff working at home and reduced mobility due to lockdown a 50% reduction in travel 

expenses for the authority could result in savings of £0.090m.  

P
age 22

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


19 
 

 A further £0.725M of budgetary savings has been identified of which has been approved by budget holders. These budgetary 

savings reflect a range of activities that may not be required as a result of the organisational focus on the Covid-19 response.”  

40 4.85 If an employee’s designated place of work is Penns 
Place then they are not eligible for travel expenses – 
delete saving of £0.090m.  
 

Travel expenses cover site visits for our Regulatory teams 

(Planning, Building Control, Environmental Health) and any 

staff travel around the district or further afield (for example for 

training/conference attendance). As a result of new ways of 

working and the lockdown, travel has been restricted to date 

and therefore a portion of the travel budget has been 

proposed to be reduced. 

39 4.85 A total freeze on recruitment will hinder the Councils 
ability to restructure. It 
is better to keep with Executive Board Approval rather 
than a total freeze. 

At present all recruitment is subject to approval from 
Executive Board and this is likely to continue. 
 

39 4.85 Have any staff been furloughed? No EHDC staff have been furloughed as per earlier response 
but staff within EH Commercial Services have been 
furloughed. 

40 4.85 Listed as approximately £1M in vacancy savings. How 
many positions is this and what’s the risk analysis for 
having these positions left vacant? 

This was the position at budget setting and relates to 
around 23 posts in addition an assumption being made on 
posts becoming vacant during the year. Any recruitment is 
subject to review by Executive Board and as such a review 
of potential risk of not recruiting is made at this stage. 
Recruitment is still permitted subject to EB approval, a full 
recruitment freeze is still only a consideration. 

40 4.88 “The Council is reviewing its financial position continually ……………………….  The work already conducted on reviewing of the 
2020-21 budget will further assist in the ensuring that the Council covers any short term funding pressures and it is likely that a 
full budget restatement will be required during the financial year. “ 

40 4.88 Given the impact on the cash reserves is there an 
approximate date as to when a full budget restatement 
will occur? 

This is expected to take place mid-year and will be 
reviewed in light of the Q1 forecast which will give an 
accurate picture of the position for the first three months of 
the year. 

P
age 23



20 
 

42 4.97 “To date only Capita have given formal notice to the council seeking financial relief. Discussion are ongoing and these will be 
reported back to Cabinet in due course.” 

42 4.97 It was not a surprise to read that Capita are seeking 
financial relief. How reliant are EHDC on Capita? 

Capita deliver the following services for EHDC: IT, 
Exchequer and Procurement. 

42 4.97 What time period and which contract is the Capita 
request in relation to? 

The Capita request relates to the 5-Councils contract 
through which EHDC receives its IT, Exchequer and 
Procurement services. 

We are still in discussions with Capita over the detail of the 
Relief Notice, including the time period to which it applies. 

43 4.103 “4.103 The Council has a wide range of income from a number of sources (taxpayers, businesses, developers, commercial 
property tenants and other sundry debtors). Many of these debtors will be experiencing financial hardship due to the impact of 
Covid-19 and several debt queries have already been received. Reassurance has been given as far as possible.  

4.104 The Council has suspended formal recovery, enforcement and legal action across all new debt arising out of the pandemic 
and will continue to support those in financial hardship.  

4.105 The Council has reviewed its approach to debt recovery. See Appendix 13 – Debt Recovery process.”  

43 4.103
-5 
App 
13 

Will the public version of this report include statements 
that “No Enforcement Action will commence”? Whilst it 
may be deemed a benign policy, does making it public 
and explicit leave the Council unnecessarily open to 
abuse by the unscrupulous? 

This is in line with other Local Authorities. Whilst 
enforcement action is on hold, recovery action is now 
underway. 

46 6.11 “Additionally, the pandemic has had an indirect impact on other areas of work, for example nuisance complaints where we have 
experienced significant increases (28% at EHDC) on the same period last year. Investigations in these complaints are being 
undertaken remotely, however pursuing formal enforcement action is extremely challenging due to the circumstances.” 

46 6.11 A breakdown of nuisance complaints would be helpful. 
Has any enforcement 
happened? 

 

See table 2 at the bottom of this report for a table. 
The data is up to 29th June so not the full month for 2020. 
The team are currently 1FTE post down following a staff 
vacancy existing since November 2019. Further time is 
required in order to provide a full breakdown by type. 

P
age 24



21 
 

No enforcement action has been taken as due to the 
lockdown and social distancing we are unable to take visits 
which is crucial for gathering evidence in nuisance cases. 

[After note:  See Noise Pollution Chart covering the last 3 
years below on page 28.] 

46 7.2 “The most noticeable of these for the Council and our staff is the use of our office space, reduction in car journeys and shift in 
energy demand to home working. Local enterprises have innovated to maintain cashflow or have been forced to cut back and 
furlough staff. Residents have noticed open green space and cleaner air and community groups have gone online.” 

46 7.2 Home working. The use by staff of space in their home 
dedicated for home working may entitle them to a 
degree of income tax relief (heat/light/telephone/rent 
etc.)  Has this been considered? 

Although working from home has a number of benefits, 
so does interacting with colleagues in the office. We 
need to be careful that we don’t move away from office 
working at such a speed that we do irreparable harm to 
the well-being of the organisation.  

There isn’t an update from the HMRC unfortunately on how 
this will be applied to people working from home in the 
current emergency. Normally individuals would need 
“home” to be their permanent contractual base which it isn’t 
for the vast majority of people working at home at the 
moment. Individuals should contact the tax office for 
specific advice if they would like to discuss their own 
situation prior to submitting an on-line claim via the .gov 
portal. All the detail are here: 

https://www.gov.uk/tax-relief-for-employees/working-at-
home 
 

When and if a claim is approved by HMRC, they will make 
an adjustment to an individual's tax code which then 
means the allowance can be credited via tax relief on 
income. 

 

Managers are encouraged to ensure that they keep in 
regular contact with their team members. A lot of managers 
are putting in place interactive team sessions and catch 
ups via Skype to ensure that staff feel connected. HR are 
also working with Heads of Service on the results of their 

P
age 25

about:blank
about:blank


22 
 

own wellbeing survey so that any hot spot areas can be 
addressed with HR support. 

47 7.4 “Reassessing the Council’s need for office space based on a fresh consideration of social distancing safe working and use of Skype 
for Business will offer a long term saving on the space required. The potential saving in space and energy required will be 
proportionate to the reduction in demand for office space, taking into account there may be a short-term requirement to 
segment the workforce to avoid high occupancy.” 

47 7.4 Is this specifically referring to Penn's Place? This is reference to all Council office space and also 
includes consideration of ensuring office space is safe for 
those attending. 

47 7.4 The future of Penns Place is a big deal. This debate 
ought to include Councillors from all Groups. 

Noted 

47 7.7 “All council vehicles, and those of our strategic partners, should be transitioned to be 100% electric (or other low-carbon 
technology) as soon as possible to reduce carbon emissions and secure the other benefits listed.” 

47 7.7 Changing to electric vehicles. This report covers the 
losses of income that the Council will incur and very 
substantial amount will not be covered by Central 
Government funding. Irrespective of whether the Council 
decides to increase Council Tax as a result, such losses 
will inevitability be met using taxpayers money. In light 
of this, and the fact that electric vehicle remain 
significantly more expensive to buy (even if running 
costs eventually make ownership less costly) the 
immediate hit on our already stained cash flow should 
be avoided. Therefore, unless a net saving from the 
outset can be demonstrated, then no vehicles should be 
replaced by electric ones. In this recommendation, I am 
placing saving money for our hard-pressed residents 
above a contribution to reducing CO2 that would be 
totally insignificant. 

Noted 

47 7.8 “On-line meetings should become the new default for internal meetings, and potentially for Council meetings and committees. 
…………….” 

P
age 26



23 
 

47 7.8 Not all Committees are suited to virtual meetings. While 
Officers have done 
well with the software at their disposal there must be 
preparations to more efficient platforms than Skype for 
Business. In particular Planning Committee has found a 
way of working which is clear, but by necessity, long 
winded. With one Planning Application taking more than 
2 hours to determine with the current platform it is 
difficult to see how this can be a permanent feature. The 
result will be more applications determined by officers. 
The Council should consider hybrid meetings with some 
Councillors present and others attending remotely. The 
right software will obviously be required. One aspect we 
should not lose is public ‘attendance’. The levels of 
people tuning in have been encouraging, EHDC should 
not lose this broadcasting element, even if we return to 
physical meetings. 

Noted 

48 7.10 “Rapid changes in the way staff work (i.e. majority now working from home as directed by central Government) has increased 
the risk of a cybersecurity or data protection breach, however this has been mitigated by the actions specified in the Covid-19 risk 
register.” 

48 7.10 I have not studied the Covid-19 Risk Register, however 
the validity of this assertion, and others, warrants a 
detailed appraisal of this risk register. This is, I believe, 
a standard Scrutiny activity especially as there will be 
many risks that are new or novel and there is potential 
for such new risks to be missed. 

Noted 

93 App 
10 

Leaders briefing of councillors via skype.  Can you 
please confirm the number, dates, times and content of 
these briefings and the number of councillors logging in?  
How was knowledge of these briefings disseminated to 
councillors?  

The Communications Strategy included a number of 
proposed methods of communications. To date, 
communications with councillors have been through the 
weekly councillor e-newsletter. Briefings via skype are an 
option for communication and hence listed in the strategy. 

P
age 27



24 
 

95 App 
11, 
3.0  
(Btm) 

When and how was this additional grant commencing 22 
to 30 June advertised?  I am aware of the discretionary 
grant that closed on 11 June at 6.30 pm.  (See Page 
98.)  
 

This is the discretionary grant that closed on 11 June and 
is due to be paid shortly. 

97  “The decision is subject to the usual ‘call-in’ process and, if not called in by the Scrutiny Board, will be effective five clear working 
days after the date of publication, i.e. 27th May 2010 If an urgent decision, this date will be the same as the date that this 
decision record was published. 

The Chair of Scrutiny has been consulted and has agreed to waive call in for this decision.”  
97  The date of publication is listed as 27th May 2010. Updated 

107 App 
15, 
Para. 
2.  

I noted that by 21 May over 5,500 calls were made by 
the 95 staff compared with the 700 referred to in 
paragraph 2, above.  

 

The outbound calls project has been undertaken across 
both Councils with call volumes reported by the individual 
councils and the project as a whole. The 5,500 figure was 
the total calls across both Councils. To bring the Board 
completely up to date, as at 22 June, 6978 calls (89% of 
total) have been made to Havant residents and 1026 (62% 
of total) to East Hampshire residents. The different call 
volumes reflect the different data sources for residents in 
the two council areas and whether phone numbers were 
available. Prioritisation was given to undertaking Havant 
calls due to the paucity of support networks in the Borough 
compared to East Hampshire. This is reflected in the 
higher percentage of calls which have been undertaken 
compared to East Hampshire, even though the total 
volume is also higher. 

107 App 
15, 
Btm 

Why if we have 95 staff making personal calls to the 
vulnerable did we also make automated calls them?  

 

We have not made automated calls, however Hampshire 
County Council have undertaken an automated calls 
project. The two projects would have used some different 
datasets, thus providing good coverage. HCC had notable 
problems in getting people to pick up the call and then to 
engage with it, potentially given that they would have heard 
a pre-recorded voice. We also had issues with people not 

P
age 28



25 
 

picking up the call, however as we were able to speak to 
the residents when they did pick up, we did manage to 
ascertain if they did have support in place and refer them 
on to the Local Response Centre on the spot if necessary 
or at least make sure that they had the phone number 
should they need support in the future. 
 
Total stats so far to date are below. 

108 App 
15, 
Para. 
3,  

I note that, early on, forced home working ‘may not be a 
positive experience for everyone.’  We shouldn’t lose 
sight of this in the race for the virtual world of work. 

Noted 

 

Havant total 
  

East Hampshire total 
 

Total (whole project) 
 

Calls 

assigned Calls made 

Calls 

outstanding 

Calls 

assigned 

Calls 

made 

Calls 

outstanding 

Calls 

assigned 

Calls 

made 

Calls 

outstanding 

7836 6978 858 1647 1026 590 9483 8004 1479 

 
89.05% 

  
62.30% 

  
84.40% 

 

P
age 29



26 
 

 

P
age 30



 

 

NON-EXEMPT 

              

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 21 July 2021 
 
Corporate Strategy 
 
Report by Head of Legal 

 

 
FOR NOTING 
 
Report No: EHCL/025/2020 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. To consult the committee on the draft East Hampshire District Council 
Corporate Strategy 2020-2024. 

 
2.0 Recommendation  
 

That the committee notes the report and provides any consultation 
response by the deadline of 7 August 2020. 

 
3.0 Executive Summary  

 
3.1 On 9 July 2020 Cabinet agreed that the draft Corporate Strategy be 

consulted on under Standing Order 56B as part of the consultation 
process before it goes to Full Council. A copy of the draft Strategy and 
supporting evidence is attached. 

 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 East Hampshire District Council must have a corporate strategy 

document which sets out the ambitions and proposed approach to 
delivery of the functions of the Council (Constitution Article 3.2 a).  

 
4.2 The Corporate Strategy is the key policy framework document that 

should articulate at a high level what the Council aims to provide for 
residents and businesses in its area.  

 
4.3 The draft Corporate Strategy set out in Appendix A has been 

developed over many months in consultation with the Council’s 
communications, insight and governance teams. It uses an evidence-
based approach to articulate the Council’s priorities. A synopsis of the 
research and evidence used to develop the Strategy’s four themes can 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 

 

be found at the start of each section, and further details are provided in 
Appendix B.  

 
4.4 This evidence-based approach will ensure that the final document is 

reflective of the priorities and vision of the communities we serve and 
provides clear direction for the Council’s activities in the next five years. 

 
5.0 Implications 
 
5.1 Resources: None 
 
5.2 Legal: The consultation is being carried out in accordance with 

Standing Order 56. 
 
5.3 Finance: None 
 
6.0 Risks 

 
6.1 There are no risks identified. 

 
7.0 Consultation 
 
7.1  There is a 4-week consultation until 7 August 2020. 
 

8.0 Communication 
 
8.1 Once approved the Corporate Strategy will be published on our website 

and this will be used for further engagement. 
 
9.0 Appendices: 

Appendix A: Draft Corporate Strategy 
Appendix B: Evidence and insight for Corporate Strategy 

 
10.0 Background Papers: 

 
10.1 None 
 
Agreed and signed off: 
 
Head of Legal Services: 13 July 2020  
Head of Finance: 13 July 2020 
 
Contact Officer: David Brown 
Job Title:   Head of Legal 
Telephone:  023 9244 6564 
E-Mail:  David.brown@easthants.gov.uk 
 

Page 32



Appendix 1 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
CORPORATE STRATEGY 2020-2024 
Introduction 
The Corporate Strategy is the document setting out the key priorities of East Hampshire District 

Council for the next five years. It is approved by full Council and forms the backbone of the policy 

framework. This document will be refined during 2020 by engaging with our partners and will inform 

the application of the budget. 

We have used an evidence-based approach to develop this strategy. This has enabled us to 

understand the need of our communities, businesses and the local economy and to show us where 

we should target our interventions. Based on this insight we have developed our four themes.  

The Council will move away from being a universal service provider to become an enabling authority 

which ensures that services are targeted to meet the needs of users and are sustainable for the 

future. This means the Council may no longer provide services in the same way and to the same 

people as before. 

Our mission is to enhance the lives of our residents, businesses and visitors.  

We will achieve this by concentrating on four themes from now until 2024:  

 A fit for purpose Council 

 A safer, healthier and more active East Hampshire 

 A thriving local economy with infrastructure to support our ambitions 

 An environmentally aware and cleaner East Hampshire 

We will embrace the following values as we deliver this Corporate Strategy: 

 Responsibility for our actions 

 Fairness and integrity in all we do 

 Responding to the needs of our community based on evidence 

 Respect and support for each other and our residents 

 Considering the future wellbeing of our area over short term expediency 

We will continue to work in partnership with Havant Borough Council to deliver effective and 

efficient services to residents and businesses. Where it is advantageous, we will work towards 

sharing our services and this will be reflected by our joint strategies (where appropriate).  

We already have a shared Chief Executive and senior management team and we will continue to 

develop this partnership arrangement. We will review our services and our approach to delivering 

them which could ultimately lead to a shared workforce.  

As well as considering the most cost-effective approach we will also consider how we can champion 

positive behaviours, in both the community and the Council, in relation to wider issues like climate 

change.  

We will continue to work in partnership with all our public sector colleagues, and as part of our 

ongoing partnership approach with Havant Borough Council we are committed to:  

Page 33



Appendix 1 
 

 Taking a shared service approach where it is advantageous to our communities  

 Shared values and behaviours for staff  

 Shared strategies (where appropriate) 

 An aligned workforce - a ‘one workforce’ concept 

 Shared processes 

 Going digital by default  

 A similar way of working under simplified, streamlined Constitutions 

 Joint commercial opportunities 

 Evidence-based decision making 

This Corporate Strategy does not sit in isolation, but gives an overarching strategic approach to the 

delivery of the priorities we have identified.  

  

Page 34



Appendix 1 
 

Theme One – a fit for purpose Council 

Our evidence 
• In 2015-16, East Hampshire District Council’s net service expenditure was £15.1m. This has 

been reduced to £10.5m in 2019-20. 

• Revenue Support Grant (funding from central government) has reduced from £2.3m in 2012-

13 to nil in 2019-20. 

• New Homes Bonus (grant from central government) is expected to fall in the next five years. 

• The Tech Partnership found in 2017 that 7% of adults in East Hampshire had not been online 

within the last three months, but we estimate that 59% are confident using services online. 

• Impact and response as a result of Covid-19 

Our intentions 
We will continue our move from a universal service provider approach to a resident-demand 

approach by better understanding the real needs and aspirations of our residents through evidence 

based decision making. We intend to deliver positive interventions which have tangible impacts in 

our communities and improve the day-to-day lives of our residents. We will aim to provide effective 

interventions to manage demand early and shift our resources towards prevention. 

Covid-19 has changed the way the Council works in both service delivery and digital working. Going 

forward the pandemic is likely to have financial implications in both the short and medium term. The 

combination of additional expenditure, lost income and economic uncertainty is a significant 

challenge which will need to be addressed. 

The Council, its structures, the staff and the services will continue to change. The transformation of 

the Council means we will change the way we do things, change which services we provide, and 

change how they are provided and to whom being guided by evidence based decision making. We 

will become more flexible and adaptable to ensure we have the right people in the right place with 

the right skills.  

The approach we will take to transform our services is to:  

1. Understand our communities and what is causing demand on our services  

2. Develop strategies which tackle these issues as early as possible to reduce this demand  

3. Evaluate the way we do things and transform our services so we are more efficient, effective 

and agile – allowing us to focus our resources towards prevention and targeted intervention 

4. Target resources and manage demand collaboratively by working with partners, the 

voluntary sector and others to help change behaviours 

Our staff are a key asset of our Council and we will continue to invest in training and development to 

ensure we have a workforce ready to deliver transformative changes and able to deliver services in 

the future.  

We will prioritise the statutory services our Council must provide, redesigning and transforming 

services that do not fit customer expectations or meet future needs.  

Budgets will be allocated to the services we must deliver to reflect demand, and this means we may 

stop providing some services or deliver those services in a very different way. 

The Council will be a digital organisation which provides high quality service accessible online. 

Page 35



Appendix 1 
 

We will encourage partners to work with us to help us deliver our objectives, whether they are other 

public bodies, private companies or third sector organisations.   

We will be commercially astute and ensure we obtain the best value financially and socially in all our 

dealings. 

We will revise our asset management strategy to ensure we have the buildings and facilities needed 

to provide good quality services.  

Community groups will need to demonstrate clear social value and long-term viability to receive 

financial support from the Council. The Council will assist community groups, through tapered grants 

and graduated rents, to become self-sustaining and to be responsible for the assets they use.  

We will make our assets available for economic and community development activities.  

The Council will continue to invest in commercial opportunities within our area which either support 

clear Council and community objectives or provide an income to support other services.   

The Council will continue to invest in commercial assets nationally and they will be properly 

managed to ensure maximum income to support the Council’s services. 

We will: 

• Understand the local needs of our town and rural communities 

• Start a transformation programme so services and resources are aligned to need and 

evidence based  

• Develop our investment strategy to generate further revenue 

• Rationalise our assets where appropriate (based on need and return – both community 

value and financial) 

• Work with partners and the voluntary sector to deliver services that meet local needs  

• Develop and implement our digital strategy  

• Seek to provide more innovative ways to deliver services our residents need by developing 

and implementing our customer access strategy  

• Renew and refresh our partnership framework and principles 

• Continue to fund services through careful, proportionate investment and development 

opportunities 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 36



Appendix 1 
 

Theme two – safer, healthier and more active East Hampshire 

Our evidence 
• Antisocial behaviour incidents have reduced considerably over the last three years.1 

• Crime hotspots are linked to the district’s retail areas. 

• Health in East Hampshire is generally better than the average in England, and life 

expectancy is higher than the national average for both men and women. 

• However, life expectancy in the most affluent parts of the district is greater by 3.1 years 

(for men) than life expectancy in the most deprived parts.2 

• By 2025, there will be 139 elderly people for every 100 children in East Hampshire.3 

• There are more than 1,200 people aged 65 and over suffering with dementia in East 

Hampshire.4 

• Social isolation is a concern - an estimated 27,000 people aged over 65 in Hampshire are 

‘lonely most of the time’.5 

• An estimated 11,600 people in East Hampshire are providing unpaid care.6 

• 22% of reception aged children in the district are overweight or obese. In Year 6, this rises 

to 30%.7 

• 65% of adults in the district are overweight or obese – higher than the national and South 

East averages.7  

• Parts of Alton rank poorly compared to other areas in Hampshire for mental health and 

wellbeing.8 

Our intentions 
Our insight shows that health in East Hampshire is generally better than the average in England. We 

will continue to focus on promoting health and physical and mental wellbeing.  

We will promote a welfare and wellbeing strategy which will ensure we enable our residents to have 

happy, healthy lives. We are investing directly into our communities to reduce social isolation and 

improve accessibility to community activities.  We will also work with partner agencies to support 

our communities.  

Our residents have the right to good quality leisure facilities which meet their needs and aspirations. 

The physical and social benefits of well performing leisure facilities improve mental and physical 

health. We will work with our partners and continue to promote opportunities to further enhance 

our residents’ lives via health and wellbeing initiatives.  

We will work with partners to secure investment in pocket parks and other outdoor spaces to 

support a growing population. We want our public open spaces to promote good mental and 

physical health and we will make outdoor space and play areas accessible for all our residents to 

enjoy. 

Our 2036 Local Plan will see many planning policies securing measures which will help to improve 

the health and wellbeing of residents. 

We will work with clubs, sports associations and other partners to promote participation and ensure 

that activities are enjoyable and accessible to all.  

We will work with our local Clinical Commissioning Group and other NHS providers to support them 

in planning and delivering good quality healthcare services. We want to see modern, appropriate 

facilities which meet demand. We will work with those responsible for public health to attract 

funding to deliver additional programmes, building on the success of already established schemes. 

Page 37



Appendix 1 
 

Working in partnership to reduce antisocial behaviour has proved successful. We need to build on 

this positive outcome by equipping our officers to support crime prevention activities and designing 

open spaces that reduce opportunities for antisocial behaviour. 

We will ensure our other regulatory activities are proportionate to the potential risks, and that we 

consider the impacts on businesses within the district. 

We will:  

• Develop and implement our welfare and wellbeing strategy  

• Develop a local walking and cycling strategy  

• Develop and deliver a Local Plan 

• Work with our partners to deliver our new and improved leisure centres  

• Ensure that health and wellbeing are at the heart of our Enhance East Hants proposals  

 

Footnotes 

1. Police.uk 

2. Office for National Statistics / Hampshire County Council / Public Health England 

3. Age UK / Office for National Statistics 

4. The Alzheimer’s Society / dementiastatistics.org 

5. Office for National Statistics / Hampshire County Council 

6. Office for National Statistics / Hampshire County Council 

7. Public Health England (2018) 

8. Hampshire County Council, Mental Health and Wellbeing Index   

Page 38



Appendix 1 
 

Theme three – a thriving local economy with infrastructure to support 

our ambitions 
 

Our evidence  
• Job density (number of jobs per working age resident) in East Hampshire has reduced slightly 

in recent years – it was 0.73 in 2019, down from 0.79 in 2015. 1 

• 13% of East Hampshire’s working age population is classed as NEET (not in education, 

employment or training) – this is below the regional and national rate.2 

• The main sector for full time employment is manufacturing and the main sectors for part 

time employment are retail and education.3 

• Those living in the district are earning above the UK average but wages of people working in 

the district are below the UK average.4 

• Affordable housing is a continuing challenge for those who want to live and work in our 

district. The average house price in East Hampshire in 2019 was £378,354, substantially 

higher than both the UK average and the South East average.5 

• Parts of East Hampshire suffer from poor educational attainment, which is a key component 

of socioeconomic deprivation.6 

• According to the Thriving Places Index, East Hampshire scores highly on place and 

environment (among others), however further work is required on sustainability and energy 

consumption.7 

• Just over half of the district falls within the South Downs National Park. 

• Around 11,500 new homes will be built in the district by 2036.8 

• The transformation of Whitehill & Bordon into a green, healthy and connected town is one 

of the country’s most ambitious regeneration programmes.9 

 

Our intentions - economy 
Our district needs to compete to attract investment and businesses. We need to increase 

employment and educational opportunities and to continue to work with employers and businesses 

to create a vibrant and prosperous economy with jobs for our residents.  

East Hampshire is a good place to live and we will work with partners to improve the quality of life 

for people in the area. 

We need to work with schools and colleges to raise skill levels and to ensure that employers have 

the skillsets they need from those coming through the education system. We propose to develop 

and grow a business partnership which will work with employers and local education providers to 

ensure that employees are appropriately skilled to participate in a thriving local economy, and that 

there are decent jobs available for this growing and improving workforce. 

We will ensure we provide opportunities for new businesses to meet changing needs by planning for 

adequate employment land through the Local Plan, and protecting existing key employment sites. 

We will work to facilitate key employment sites to be secured and brought forward into effective 

use.  

Housing for current and future residents is critical for a successful local economy. We will ensure we 

provide enough homes to meet needs and that these are supported by adequate infrastructure. We 

will work in partnership with the South Downs National Park Authority to ensure the full housing 

Page 39



Appendix 1 
 

needs of the district are met. We also want to accelerate the delivery of affordable housing.  As a 

district council, we have an important role in providing housing advice and options to our residents. 

We will implement a new Homelessness Strategy to support residents in need, and we will develop 

new accommodation options within the district.  

We will:  

• Deliver the Homelessness Strategy 

• Engage with businesses to help create decent jobs 

• Work to secure delivery of key employment sites 

• Progress the 2036 Local Plan, which will encourage sustainable economic development 

in the district 

 

Our intentions - infrastructure 
To succeed on the delivery of our objectives, we must ensure that the right physical infrastructure is 

in place. Physical infrastructure can include a wide range of things, including (but not limited to) 

roads, green space, buildings, housing and utilities including electricity and broadband.  

Many aspects of infrastructure delivery rely on partner organisations. We will therefore work with all 

our partners in the public, private and third sector to deliver a programme of place making and 

regeneration initiatives across the district. We want to secure the delivery of key infrastructure, 

unlock and accelerate strategic development opportunities and implement ambitious regeneration 

plans for Whitehill & Bordon. This will help achieve our purpose: to enhance the lives of our 

residents, businesses and visitors. 

There are three components in the formation of place and the Council has a part to play in each, as 

set out in the Enhance East Hants Placemaking Strategy 2019-36. These three roles are:  

• Place shaping – establishing and setting a clear vision, policies and strategic plans to help 

shape and define the district as a thriving and high quality place. 

• Place making – delivery (directly or with partners) of the infrastructure and facilities 

needed to achieve our ambitions for the district. 

• Place keeping – preserving and protecting the district through careful management as 

well as delivery of our regulatory services, to ensure the quality of the place is 

maintained and enhanced. 

The Council will proactively engage and work with a variety of partners and stakeholders to get the 

best possible outcomes. The Council’s Let’s Talk programme will be an important tool as part of this 

engagement process.  

We will: 

• Deliver the Enhance East Hants strategy, which will provide strategic leadership on an 

ambitious programme of work to enhance the district 

• Put in place effective and robust partnerships, working arrangements and governance 

structures to support the programme 

• Coordinate and make best use of Council resources, including funding, people and 

property 

• Seek funding to support key projects and initiatives from both the public and the private 

sector 

Page 40



Appendix 1 
 

• Work with local partners and stakeholders to develop a place identity which builds on 

local pride and key assets 

• Secure the infrastructure needed to support future growth through the Local Plan 

• Agree how we will spend CIL monies through the implementation of the CIL spending 

protocol 

 

Footnotes 

1. Office for National Statistics (2017), Job Density via NOMISWEB 

2. Office for National Statistics (2019) – Annual Population Survey 

3. Office for National Statistics (2018) - Business Register and Employment Survey 

4. Office for National Statistics (2018) – Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, resident and 

workplace analysis 

5. UK House Price Index, August 2019. UK average house price was £234,853 and South East average 

was £326,232 

6. Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (2019) - English indices of deprivation 

2019 – Index of Multiple Deprivation 

7.. https://www.thrivingplacesindex.org/candidates/E07000085 

8. East Hampshire Draft Local Plan 2036 

9. Enhance East Hants – East Hampshire Placemaking Strategy 2019-2036 

 

  

Page 41

https://www.thrivingplacesindex.org/candidates/E07000085


Appendix 1 
 

Theme four – an environmentally aware and cleaner East Hampshire 

Our evidence 
 CO2 emissions per capita in East Hampshire are high in comparison to the rest of the South 

East and England – with transport being the main source.1 

 In 2018-19, 34.3% of household waste was sent for recycling, reuse or composting (the 

national average was 43.5%).2 

 Contamination of recycling persists – an average of 14% of the recycling collected (by 

weight) is contaminated.3 

 The number of fly tipping incidents in East Hampshire (426 in 2018-19) is far lower than the 

average for the South East.4 

Our intentions 
We want East Hampshire District Council to be a leader and set high standards for environmental 

sustainability, as an employer and in the community.  

We want to see faster progress towards mitigating our environmental impact and we will work with 

partners to put in place an achievable action plan.  

Through our place making proposals we will look at developing and supporting environmentally 

sustainable business and personal conduct which will include initiatives around sustainable local 

transport.   

Our 2036 Local Plan will see many environmental measures embedded within the planning process. 

Nitrate neutrality will continue to be an issue in the district and the Council will participate in the 

work of the Partnership for South Hampshire to ensure that development is sustainable and the 

environment is protected. 

We recognise the importance of trees in our landscape and ecosystems. We will engage with 

community groups, land owners and seek funding to plant 120,000 trees. 

We will work with our residents to encourage recycling and to also reduce contamination of this 

recycling. Increased recycling rates will reduce costs for the Council and reduce our environmental 

impact.   

We believe East Hampshire is a beautiful place to live and our residents have the right to live in a 

clean and attractive district. We will continue to target rubbish on our streets, including fly tipping, 

and we will take a zero-tolerance approach to littering.  

We will work with partners to educate and where necessary enforce, particularly in our shopping 

areas and public parks. We will use any new powers provided by government against offenders.  

Our district has some wonderful parks and outdoor spaces, including part of the South Downs 

National Park. As custodians of many open spaces, the Council will continue to look for sustainable 

ways of maintaining and improving these spaces for future generations.  

We will:  

• Ensure the environmentally sustainable use of our resources 

• Commit to actions to mitigate the impact of environmental changes 

• Reduce unnecessary waste and increase reuse of materials 

• Use all our legislative powers to ensure our district is kept clean for all to enjoy 

Page 42



Appendix 1 
 

 

Footnotes 

1. Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (2019) - 2005 to 2017 UK local and regional 

CO2 emissions – data tables 

2. Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (2019) - ENV18 - Local authority collected 

waste: annual results tables  

3. Norse SE (2019) 

4. Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (2019) - ENV24 - Fly tipping incidents and 

actions taken in England 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Evidence & Insight for Corporate 
Strategy

East Hampshire 
July 2020

P
age 45



Theme 1 – A fit for purpose Council

P
age 46



Challenges Facing Local Government

P
age 47



Revenue Support Grant

P
age 48



New Homes Bonus

P
age 49



MTFS
2020-2025

2020/21 
Estimate

2021/22 
Estimate

2022/23 
Estimate

2023/24 
Estimate

2024/25 
Estimate

£ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000)

Director of Corporate Services
5 Councils Staff and Contract 258 258 258 258 258 
Executive Office 410 410 410 410 410 
Head of Legal 334 334 334 334 334 
Head of Organisational Development 1,406 1,411 1,415 1,420 1,425 
Head of Programmes Redesign 2,770 2,790 2,811 2,831 2,853 
Head of Customer Services 2,046 2,046 2,046 2,046 2,046 
Head of Strategic Commissioning 4,281 3,883 3,461 3,124 3,203 
Head of Finance 1,004 767 781 795 809 
Head of Commercial Development 83 79 74 70 65 

Director of Regeneration and Planning
Head of Neighbourhood Support (449) (507) (561) (616) (673)
Head of Housing 218 439 439 439 439 
Head of Planning 1,205 1,212 1,212 1,212 1,212 
Head of Community Engagement 1,216 1,216 1,216 1,216 1,216 
Head of Property (4,620) (4,915) (4,915) (4,915) (4,915)
Project Director Regenco (409) (410) (410) (410) (410)
Head of Regeneration (North) 1,058 647 647 647 647 

Other Operating I&E (Corporate Pension Costs) 887 887 887 887 887 
Depreciation (986) (986) (986) (986) (986)

Total Cost of Services 10,712 9,561 9,119 8,762 8,820 

Further savings to be found
Income from further investment in property (2,400) (4,800) (4,800) (4,800)
Salary inflation 524 1,070 1,637 2,227 
Interest payable on external loans 1,182 2,364 2,364 2,364 
Minimum Revenue Provision 988 1,067 1,148 1,148 
Capital Expenditure Charged to Revenue
Net Cost of Services 10,712 9,855 8,820 9,111 9,759 

Parish Precepts 3,986 3,986 3,986 3,986 3,986 
Business Rates Retention (1,306) (2,116) (1,896) (1,896) (1,896)
Council Tax Demand on the Collection Fund 
(inc precepts) (10,817) (11,024) (11,236) (11,455) (11,681)
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (118)
General Grants
New Homes Bonus Grant (3,346) (1,530) (920) 0 0 
Other Financing

Contributions to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 850 
Contributions to/(from) General Fund Balance 39 829 1,246 254 (168)
Balance Deficit/(Surplus) 0 0 0 0 0 

P
age 50



MTFS assumptions

• 4% uplift in staffing costs covering cost of living (2%) and increment 
payments (2%)

• Contract uplifts applied as per contract schedules

• Business Rates – assumes revision back to baseline for 2021-22 with 
growth at 2% and transitionary grant from government in 2021

• New Homes Bonus reduction based on forecast

• Council Tax growth of 1% and 2% uplift

• Fees & Charges inflationary uplift of 2%

P
age 51



Likelihood of overall digital exclusion in East Hampshire is 
medium 

• The Tech Partnership explored the likelihood of digital exclusion across the UK in 2017

• In East Hampshire it identified the following challenges:
• 7% of households in East Hampshire do not receive broadband speeds of at least 10 

megabits per second (Mbps)
• 7% of adults in East Hampshire have not been online within the last 3 months
• 23% of adults in East Hampshire are over 65

Source: The Tech Partnership 2017

P
age 52



In terms of our residents in East Hampshire we estimate we have a 
mix of online personas some of whom are willing and able to move to 
a digital service (59%) but many who will need help (40%)

Confident Kate
Ready and 

waiting to use 
services online

Offline Olive
Not interested in 
being online may 

not even be 
connected to 

internet

Worrying 
William

More cautious 
and reserved 
about using 

online services

Frustrated Fern

Get’s frustrated 
with channel and 
does not trust it

Techy Terry
Early adopter. 

Always has the 
very latest 
technology

8% 51% 26% 10% 4%

P
age 53



Theme 2 – Safer, healthier and 
more active East HampshireP

age 54



Overall crime rate in East Hampshire is relatively consistent

Source: Police.UK Database
Numbers are a total of all logged incidents regardless of outcome

P
age 55



Reports of anti-social behaviour have reduced 
from 184 cases in March 2017 to 31 in Sept 2019

Source: Police.UK Database
Numbers are a total of all logged incidents regardless of outcome

P
age 56



Violence and sexual offences are the most reported crime in 
the East Hampshire area

Source: Police.UK Database

P
age 57



Combined theft related offences overtake violence and sexual offence 
as the main crime in East Hampshire 

P
age 58



Summary of crime figures in East Hampshire

• Violence and sexual offence is the most reported issue in East Hampshire

• This is overtaken (marginally) however when all theft related offences are combined –
this ties into district wide policing priority for theft and burglary

• Anti-social behaviour incidents have reduced considerably

• Crime hotspots linked to District’s retail areas

• Local policing priorities concerned with the above and ASB

• Priorities identified by Hampshire include drug related harm, child sexual exploitation 
and organised crime groups, supporting families, ASB, vulnerable groups and rural crime

Our work has had a positive effect on ASB and we now need to use the success of these 
initiatives to continue to combat crime in our district

P
age 59



Health in East Hampshire is generally better than the average 
in England

• Life expectancy is higher in East Hampshire than the average for both men and women

• Life expectancy is 3.1 years lower for men in the most deprived areas of East Hampshire 
than in the least deprived areas

Source: Office of National Statistics; Hampshire County Council; Public Health England

P
age 60



East Hampshire has an ageing population

• By 2041 almost a 3rd population of the district will be over 65 years old
Source: Age UK / Office for National Statistics

By 2025, there will be 139 
elderly people for every 100 
children in East Hampshire

P
age 61



With an ageing population Dementia is expected to rise

• In 2013, it was reported that 1,819 people in East Hampshire were suffering with 
dementia

• These were predominantly in the 85-89 age range

• As of July 2019, there were a reported 1,211 people aged 65 and over in East Hampshire 
suffering with dementia

Source: The Alzheimer’s Society 
/ dementiastatistics.org

(UK Wide)

P
age 62



Social isolation and loneliness is a concern for this area given 
its rural location

• There are a number of groups at risk to social isolation and loneliness

• A study shows an estimated 27,000 people aged over 65 years in Hampshire are ‘lonely 
most of the time’

• 11,631 in East Hampshire are providing unpaid care

• 7% of East Hampshire population are non-white British

• Particular concern in East Hampshire is around access to services (given the number of  
rural localities)

Source: Office for National Statistics / Hampshire County Council

P
age 63



East Hampshire obesity is a challenge

65.1% of adults are 
classed as overweight or 

obese

(Higher than South East –
60.3% and England –

62%)

21.7% of Reception aged 
children are classed as 
overweight or obese

(Higher than South East –
20.6% but better than 

England – 22.4%)

30.1% of Year 6 aged 
children are classed as 
overweight or obese

(Higher than South East –
30.8% but better than 

England – 34.3%)

Source: Public Health England 2018

P
age 64



Mental Health and Wellbeing

Overall, the district is performing well in terms of 
mental health and wellbeing 

However, Alton Eastbrooke ranks in the most deprived 
decile in Hampshire for mental health and well-being 
(19th most deprived ward in Hants)

Source: Hampshire County Council

P
age 65



Overall there are no East Hampshire LSOAs in the lowest two 
deciles (i.e. the most deprived 20% nationally) for the IMD 

Source: Indices of Deprivation, 2019; Public Health 2019

• In terms of ‘Income’, ‘Employment’ or ‘Health Deprivation and Disability’ domains 
(IMD) there are no East Hampshire LSOAs in the lowest two deciles

• However, there are East Hampshire LSOAs in the lowest two deciles (i.e. the most 
deprived 20%) nationally for the ‘Education, Skills and Training’, ‘Crime’, ‘Barriers 
to Housing and Services’, and ‘Living Environment’ domains.

• According to a Public Health profile of East Hampshire (2019) 8.1% of children live 
in low income families

P
age 66



IMD measures key metrics when considering 
quality of life in specific areas 

Source: Indices of Deprivation, 2019

P
age 67



There are pockets of deprivation within East 
Hampshire

East Hampshire LSOAs in most deprived deciles in England

Education • Lowest 10%  - Hollybrook Park, Apollo Drive area in Whitehill & Bordon (East Hampshire 006C)  
• Lowest 20% - Lipscombe Rise, Alton College, Edward Road area of Alton (East Hampshire 002B)  / Heatherlands

area of Headley Down, Sleaford (East Hampshire 004A)

Crime • Lowest 10% - Hollybrook Park, Apollo Drive area in Whitehill & Bordon (East Hampshire 006C) / Bordon Camp (East 
Hampshire 004D)

• Lowest 20% - Farnham Road, Whitehill & Bordon (East Hampshire 004C)

Income 
Deprivation 
affecting 
children

• Lowest 30% - Lipscombe Rise, Alton College, Edward Road, Alton (East Hampshire 002B) / High Street, Normandy 
Street, Alton (East Hampshire 002C) / Hollybrook Park, Apollo Drive, Whitehill & Bordon (East Hampshire 006C) 

• Lowest 40% - Anstey Lane, Manor Road, Alton (East Hampshire 002D) / Cranford Road, Borough Road, Petersfield
(East Hampshire 012B) / Bordon Camp (East Hampshire 004D)

Income 
Deprivation 
affecting 
older people

• Lowest 30% - High Street, Normandy Street, Alton (East Hampshire 002C)
• Lowest 40% - Lipscombe Rise, Alton College, Edward Road, Alton (East Hampshire 002B) / Canada Way, Sainsburys, 

Liphook (East Hampshire 012B) / Cranford Road, Borough Road, Petersfield (East Hampshire 012B) / Chalet Hill, 
Forest Road, Pinehill Road, Whitehill & Bordon (East Hampshire 004B) 

Source: Indices of Deprivation, 2019

P
age 68



Serious injury from road traffic accidents is high in East 
Hampshire in comparison to Hampshire and England

Source: Public Health England 2019

Killed and seriously injured (KSI) rate on England’s roads Crude rate - per 100,000

P
age 69



Road traffic accident (involving injury to pedestrians and 
cyclists) hotspots are located in two LSOAs

The hotspots are: 
• Bell Hill, Woodbury Avenue Petersfield (EH 011C) 
• Bedford Road, Noreuil Road Petersfield (EH 012A)

• Note that Bedford Road, Noreuil Road LSOA also has the worst air quality in East Hampshire.

• Accidents in these two locations are markedly higher than elsewhere across the 
dristict

Source: IMD (2019) Department of Transport 2015, 2016 and 2017

P
age 70



Rural locations contribute to high ‘Barriers to Housing and 
Services’ deprivation scores

• Eight East Hampshire LSOAs in the most 
deprived decile

• Reflective of rural location – driven by 
‘Geographical Barriers’ sub-domain

• Assessed by road distance to:
• Post office
• Primary School
• General store or supermarket
• GP Surgery

Source: Indices of Deprivation, 2019

P
age 71



Housing conditions drive deprivation by the ‘Living 
Environment’ domain

• Twelve EH LSOAs in most deprived decile for 
‘inside living environment’ 

• Driven by ‘housing in poor condition’ – failing 
to meet the Decent Homes Standard 

• Also by ‘houses without central heating’ –
measure of housing which is expensive to 
heat

• Given these areas tend to be in affluent areas 
of the district it is unclear from this picture 
why the score is so low

Source: Indices of Deprivation, 2019

P
age 72



Educational attainment in Hollybrook Park/ Apollo Drive area of 
Whitehill and Bordon is in the most deprived 10% in England

• The ‘Education, Skills and Training’ domain may be divided 
into the ‘Children and Young People’ sub-domain and the 
‘Adult Skills’ sub-domain

• Children and Young People sub-domain
• Hollybrook Park, Apollo Drive, Whitehill & Bordon (EH 006C)
• Heatherlands, Sleaford (EH 004A)

• Are in the Lowest decile (most deprived 10% in England)

• Adult Skills sub-domain
• Hollybrook Park, Apollo Drive, Whitehill & Bordon (EH 006C)

• Are in the Lowest decile (most deprived 10% in England)

Fig.2  Education, Skills and Training –
East Hampshire areas of deprivation 
(purple lowest decile, orange second 
lowest decile)

P
age 73



We have three areas falling into the lowest two deciles in East 
Hampshire

• The Crime domain is assessed using police 
data on violence, theft, burglary and 
criminal damage. The data is provided by 
the Home Office

• Areas in lowest decile (most deprived 10% 
of country)

• Hollybrook Park, Apollo Drive, Whitehill & 
Bordon (EH006C)

• Bordon Camp, (EH 004D)

• One area in the second lowest decile
• Farnham Road, Whitehill & Bordon (EH 

004C)

Fig.3 – Crime index – areas of deprivation (purple 
lowest decile, orange second lowest decile)

P
age 74



Theme 3 – A thriving East Hampshire economy 
with infrastructure to support our ambitions

P
age 75



Resident unemployment figures are low 

Unemployment estimates for local authority areas except county councils are model-based. Estimates for other geography types are not model-based and are taken directly from the Annual 
Population Survey dataset.

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey, 2019

P
age 76



13% of our residents are classed as NEET, which slightly lower 
than South East region

• 13% of East Hampshire's working age population is classed as NEET. This is below 
regional and national rate

 

EHDC HBC South East England 

Number 
% of 16-64 
population Number 

% of 16-64 
population Number 

% of 16-64 
population Number 

% of 16-64 
population 

Number of NEET residents (not 
in employment, education or 
training) 8,800 13.08% 12,800 17.00% 769,200 13.83% 5,353,300 15.41% 

 

Source: ONS Annual Population Survey, 2019

P
age 77



Total number of jobs in East Hampshire have fallen by nearly 
3000 in the last four years

Source: ONS Business Register and Employment Survey, 2018

P
age 78



Lead industry of full-time employees is manufacturing in EH

Source: ONS Business Register and Employment Survey, 2018

P
age 79



Lead industry of part-time employees is retail and education in 
EH 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Number of Part-Time Employees in East Hampshire by Industry - 2015 to 2018

2015 2016 2017 2018

Source: ONS Business Register and Employment Survey, 2018

P
age 80



Those living in East Hampshire are earning above the UK average but 
wages of people working in East Hampshire are below the UK weekly 
average 

Earnings by place of residence (2018)

East Hampshire
(Pounds)

South East
(Pounds)

Great Britain
(Pounds)

Gross Weekly Pay

Full-Time Workers 648.9 614.5 571.1

Male Full-Time 
Workers

663.1 670.8 612.2

Female Full-Time 
Workers

630.8 541.9 510.0

Hourly Pay - Excluding Overtime

Full-Time Workers 17.30 15.65 14.36

Male Full-Time 
Workers

16.21 16.61 14.89

Female Full-Time 
Workers

17.86 14.43 13.56

Source: ONS annual survey of hours and earnings - resident analysis
Notes:   Median earnings in pounds for employees living in the area.

Earnings by place of work (2018)

East 
Hampshire

(Pounds)

South East
(Pounds)

Great Britain
(Pounds)

Gross Weekly Pay

Full-Time Workers 551.5 589.2 570.9

Male Full-Time 
Workers

570.7 635.0 611.8

Female Full-Time 
Workers

495.9 521.7 509.8

Hourly Pay - Excluding Overtime

Full-Time Workers 12.61 14.91 14.35

Male Full-Time 
Workers

13.42 15.70 14.88

Female Full-Time 
Workers

12.21 13.85 13.55

Source: ONS annual survey of hours and earnings - workplace analysis
Notes: Median earnings in pounds for employees working in the area.

P
age 81



Average price of property in East Hampshire is above the SE 
average 

• In East Hampshire the average price of a property in is £378,354

• Average price of a property in the UK was £234,853

• Average price of property in London was £472,753 and the average price of a property in 
the South East was £326,232

Affordable housing is a continuing challenge for those residents that want to own a 
house and continue working in our district

Source: UK House Price Index – August 2019 *calculated using data from HM Land Registry, Registers of Scotland, and Land and 
Property Services Northern Ireland

P
age 82



Theme 4 – An environmentally aware and 
cleaner East Hampshire

P
age 83



East Hampshire CO² Emissions have reduced but remain high in 
comparison to the rest of the South East and England

• CO² emissions in East Hampshire have 
reduced since 2005

• In 2017, emissions per resident are 5.4 
tonnes (above South East - 5.0 - and 
England – 5.1)

• Industry and commercial emissions have 
reduced by just under 50% since 2005

• Transport the main source of emissions 
for the area

Source: Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy

890.8 876.9 862.0
841.1

796.6
839.7

770.5 781.4
754.0

690.6 683.1 665.7 647.3

-

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

800.0

900.0

1,000.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Ki
lo

to
nn

es
 o

f C
O

2
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

Year

East Hampshire CO² Emissions

P
age 84



Contamination of recycling persists. Residents ideally want to 
be able to recycle more through the kerbside collection

• During the last 6 month on average 
14.37% of the recycling waste is 
contaminated

• 6.23% of the refuse waste collected 
could have been recycled

• 24,123 tonnes of household and 7,413 
tonnes of recycling waste – both are 
down on previous years

What, if anything, would persuade you personally to recycle more?

Source: NORSE (2019); Essential Services Survey (2016)

P
age 85



Predicted impact of climate change in East Hampshire 

Impact of increased likelihood of fluvial, surface water and groundwater flooding

• Flood risk assessed taking into account the projected impact of climate change
• A proportion of East Hampshire designated as having ‘a medium and high probability of 

flooding from rivers’
• Areas at risk include: 

o River Wey (affecting areas including Alton, Whitehill and Bordon and surrounding 
villages)

o River Deadwater
o Haslemere Stream 
o River Lavant (affecting areas including Rowlands Castle)

Source: East Hampshire District Council Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 2018

P
age 86


	Agenda
	5 Update from Task & Finish Group - Covid-19 Response
	TFG Covid-19 Report to OS - 6 Jul 20 V1.2
	Councillor Comments  Questions - Master 25 Jun 20 V1.2A.docx

	6 Corporate Strategy
	EHDC Cabinet report 9th July 2020 - draft Corporate Strategy - Appendix 1 Corporate Strategy draft
	Appendix 2


